

## PRESENT: COUNCILLOR P J O'CONNOR (CHAIRMAN)

Councillors Mrs A M Newton (Vice-Chairman), B Adams, C J T H Brewis, A Bridges, M Brookes, P M Dilks, R L Foulkes, A G Hagues, A J Jesson, C E D Mair, Mrs M J Overton MBE, R B Parker, C L Strange, Mrs C A Talbot and T M Trollope-Bellew.

Officers in attendance:-

Simon Evans (Health Scrutiny Officer), David Forbes (County Finance Officer), David Hair (Team Leader - Scrutiny and Member Support), Tracy Johnson (Scrutiny Officer), Jasmine Sodhi (Performance and Equalities Manager), Louise Tyers (Scrutiny Officer) and Richard Wills (Executive Director for Environment and Economy).

#### 44 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE/REPLACEMENT MEMBERS

Apologies were received from Councillors C E H Marfleet and Mrs A Reynolds and from Added Members Mr Thompson, Mr Rudman, Mrs E J Olivier-Townrow and Mrs G Wright.

#### 45 DECLARATION OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS

No declarations were made.

# 46 MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE COMMITTEE HELD ON 18 DECEMBER 2014

#### **RESOLVED**

That the minutes of the meeting held on 18 December 2014 be approved and signed by the Chairman as a correct record.

### 47 CONSIDERATION OF CALL-INS

No call-ins had been received.

# 48 PROPOSALS FOR SCRUTINY REVIEW

There had been no proposals for scrutiny reviews.

# 49 <u>IMPACT OF COUNCIL BUDGET REDUCTIONS ON THE WIDER PUBLIC</u> SECTOR

At its meeting on 18 December 2014, the Committee requested that a report be produced regarding the feasibility of undertaking assessments of the financial impact of Lincolnshire County Council budget reductions on the wider public sector within the County.

The Committee discussed the report and the following points were noted:

- The County Council had good relationships with other agencies and David Forbes met with other treasurers at district level;
- It was suggested that officers could look at the impact that previous budget reductions had on the wider public sector;
- It was highlighted that external organisations and charities needed to be kept aware of budget decisions as the Council had open and honest relationships with them;
- It was highlighted that the Council was not the only source of funding that charities could apply to and if these alternative sources were not utilised, they may disappear;
- The increase in the population of Lincolnshire would continue to be highlighted to central government as evidence for more funding.

Following discussion on the next steps, it was agreed that David Forbes would return to the Committee in six months' time (for its meeting on 20 July 2015) with a further report on how to take the issue forward on a practical basis ahead of the January 2016 scrutiny committee budget cycle.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. That the report be noted;
- 2. That a further report be brought to Committee at its meeting on 20 July 2015.

# 50 DRAFT COUNCIL BUSINESS PLAN 2015/2016

Consideration was given to a report which outlined the outcomes and measures of the draft Council Business Plan 2015/2016. The draft Plan was due to be presented to the Executive on 3 February 2015.

It was noted that the Plan did not contain everything that was measured; only certain services were elevated to the plan.

Poor communication between the Council and small parishes was raised. It was noted that a Scrutiny Review specifically looking at the relationship between the Council and parish councils had taken place. It was felt that if parish councils still felt

there was a problem, then this should be looked into further. Jasmine Sodhi would take this comment back to commissioners.

#### **RESOLVED**

- 1. That the report be noted;
- That comments made on the draft Council Business Plan 2015/2016 be noted.

#### 51 OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY WORK PROGRAMME

Consideration was given to a report which enabled the Committee to consider both its own work programme and the scrutiny committee work programmes for 2015.

Discussion took place regarding the Audit Committee on 26 January 2015 and its consideration of the Organisational Learning – Libraries Project report.

Consideration of work programmes:

#### i) Adults Scrutiny Committee

The item on the Carers Commissioning Strategy would not be coming forward at the meeting on 25 February and may be considered in May or June.

It was confirmed that there would be an item on the *Arrangements for the Section 75 Agreement* to support the Better Care Fund in 2015-2016 at the meeting on 25 February 2015.

There were no other changes to the work programme.

#### ii) Children and Young People Scrutiny Committee

There were a number of amendments to the work programme.

The report on the consultation on the future of Brocklesby Park Primary School and potential closure (Final Decision) had been deferred from 24 April to 5 June. The Executive Councillor decision would now be taken on 22 June 2015

An exempt report on Family Support Commissioning Review had been added to the agenda for the 24 April meeting, for pre-decision scrutiny prior to an Executive decision on 5 May.

A report on a proposal to expand capacity at Spalding Parish Church of England Day School (Final Decision) had been added to the 5 June agenda for pre-decision scrutiny prior to an Executive Councillor decision on 22 June.

#### iii) Community and Public Safety Scrutiny Committee

There was a change to the work programme for the meeting on 4 March. The item on the Director of Public Health's Annual Report would now be considered on 15 April.

## iv) Economic Scrutiny Committee

There were two amendments to the work programme.

The report on Unlocking Rural Housing had been deferred from 24 February to the 9 June meeting.

The report on Lincoln Castle Revealed had been removed from the 24 February agenda as the Committee would be visiting the Castle that afternoon. The visit, to which all county councillors had been invited, would give officers a chance to update on the progress of the project and would include an opportunity to go on the wall walk, see the prison, the Magna Carta Vault and the Heritage Skills Centre. A buffet lunch would be available at the Castle from 1pm and the tour would be from 2pm to 4pm.

# v) Environmental Scrutiny Committee

There were no changes to the work programme at this time.

#### vi) <u>Health Scrutiny Committee</u>

The Committee would not be including an item on the *Health Education East Midlands – Lincolnshire Workforce Strategy*. This was because Health Education England was being restructured, but it remained an important item for the Committee.

The Chairman added to the list an item on *Working Protocol Between the Health Scrutiny Committee and the NHS England Area Team*, which following reorganisations going to be called NHS England Central Midlands, which covers Bedfordshire, Hertfordshire, Milton Keynes, Leicestershire, Lincolnshire, Northamptonshire and Rutland.

#### 11 March 2015

There were no changes to the items for the March meeting, except that the Chairman confirmed that the Committee would be considering an update on *Winter Pressures* 2014-2015.

#### 20 May 2015

The Committee would be considering an item on *Health Visiting and the School Nursing Service*, which had been requested at its meeting earlier this month.

## Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy

As part of its work programme report on 11 February, the Committee would be exploring ways of scrutinising the Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy during 2015-2016. The Strategy had five themes and twenty priorities, some of which touched on the activities of other scrutiny committees at the County Council and even the scrutiny committees at district councils for the housing elements of the Strategy.

Although the Committee considered a performance framework report on the Strategy in October 2014, it had planned to look at each theme in the Strategy in detail during the 2014-2015 Council year. Unfortunately this had not taken place. As it considered a way forward, the Committee needed to ensure the right commissioners and providers, who were accountable for the delivery of the priorities in the strategy, were present at the meeting to present their information to the Committee.

#### Care Quality Commission Training Session – 22 April 2015

The Chairman wished to report that the Health Scrutiny Committee would be holding a training session on Wednesday 22 April on the Care Quality Commission's inspection arrangements for acute hospitals, community health services, mental health services and GP practices. The session would enable the Committee to develop an understanding of how the new inspection arrangements worked and what the outcomes were.

Discussion took place regarding staffing levels within the NHS and regarding Lincolnshire's funding for winter pressures. Bids had been put together to apply for money and Councillor Mrs Talbot could provide these figures outside of the meeting.

## vii) Highways and Transport Scrutiny Committee

There were no changes to the work programme at this time.

#### viii) Value for Money Scrutiny Committee

There were no changes to the work programme at this time. There were currently no items on the agenda for the meeting scheduled for 28 April 2015. The Committee would discuss at its February meeting whether to hold the April meeting.

## **RESOLVED**

- 1. That the work programmes for the Overview and Scrutiny Management Committee and the Council's other Scrutiny Committees (Appendices A and B) be approved, subject to any amendments identified above;
- 2. That the working group activity, as set out in Appendix C, be noted;
- 3. That the Forward Plan of Key Decisions from 2 February 2015, as set out in Appendix D, be noted.

The meeting closed at 12.10 pm.